
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

HAROLD J. WEISDERG, 	 ) 
) 

Plaintiff, 	) 
) 

vs. 	 ) Civil Action No 
) 

DEPARTMENT CF JUSTICE, et al., 	) 	226-75 
) 

Defendant. 	) 

Deposition of JOHN 	GALLAGHER 

Washingtrn, D.C. 
March 28, 1977 

Pages 1 thru 120 

J- fo0uer ker0141119 CO., JL. 

320 Massachusetts Avenue, N.E. 
Washington, D.C. 20002 

546-6666 



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

X 

HAROLD J. WEISBERG, 

Plaintiff, 

: Civil Action No. 226-75 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, et al., 

Defendants. 

	  X 

Washington, D. C. 
Monday, March 28, 1977 

Deposition of JOHN F. GALLAGHER, taken on behalf 
of the plaintiff in the above-entitled action at 910 16th 
Street, Northwest, Washington, D. C., pursuant to notice, 
beginning at 11:32 a.m., before Sandra S. Morgan, a notary 
public in and for the District of Columbia. 

APPEARANCES: 

For the plaintiff: 	 For the defendants: 

JAMES R. LESAR, Esq. 
910 16th Street, NW 
Washington, D. C. 

ALSO PRESENT: 

MARION M. JOHNSON 
TRUDY PETERSON 
National Archives 

MICHAEL J. RYAN, Esq. 
Assistant U. S. Attorney 
Room 3421 
U. S. Courthouse 
Washington, D. C. 



2 

WITNESS: 

JOHN F. GALLAGHER 

CONTENTS 

EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE . 

PLAINTIFF: 	DEFENDANTS: 

3 	 115 

EXHIBITS: 	 MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION: 

Gallagher Exhibit No. 1 	 21 

Gallagher Exhibit No. 2 	 21 

Gallagher Exhibit No. 3 	 50 

Gallagher Exhibit No. 4 	 72 

Gallagher Exhibit No. 5 	 45 

Gallagher Exhibit No. 6 	 96 

HOOVER REPORTING CO. INC 

.?U Maasb flu&IL Avimt' N f. 

Wahiiitn, DI. 

,,202; S45 C6be 

- 



3 

PROCEEDINGS 

Whereupon, 

JOHN F. GALLAGHER 

was called as a witness and, having first been duly sworn, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE PLAINTIFF 

BY MR. LESAR: 

• Would you begin by stating your experience with the 

FBI, how long you were employed, when you retired, and what 

your areas of expertise were when you were with the FBI? 

• I joined the FBI after I got out of the service 

in 1946. 

From 1946 to 1975 I was employed by the FBI, 

primarily in the laboratory as a special agent. 

• Pardon me. 

You resigned in 1975? 

• Yes. 

4 When? 

A January. 

• And what areas were you qualified in as an expert? 

• I was qualified in the areas of instrument analysis. 

4 	What instruments? 

A 	Well, the spectrophotometer, the spectrograph, the 
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1 

X-ray defraction, spectrometer, the neutron activation 

analysis and spark source mass spectrography. 

4 	Were yoU also trained in ballistics? 

• No. 

a 	Did you perform microscopic examination of items 

of evidence? 

• Yes, about every piece of evidence that comes into 

our unit -- 

4 	Could you speak up a little? 

A 	About every peice of evidence that came into our 

section was at first subjected to mecroscopic examination. 

That's not universally true, but generally. 

• What section of the FBI were you assigned to in 

1973? 

• The spectrographic unit. 

• Who was your immediate supervisor? 

• Special Agent Roy Jevons. 

• What would have been the relationship between you 

and Mr. Robert Frazier? 

• He was a special agent examiner in the fire arms 

unit of physics and chemistry section. 

Q. 	Fine. 

I am going to try and accommodate Mr. Johnson and 
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direct to you some questions that will enable us to dispose 

of some of the items of evidence that he has brought here
 

from the National Archives. 

I would like to know whether or not you made any 

examination of a curbstone removed from Dealey Plaza whic
h 

was alleged to have been struck by a bullet. 

• I have no recollection of doing that examination. 

• You made no microscopic examination of it? 

• I don't think I examined any curbstone from some 

plaza that you mentioned. 

Q. 	Dealey Plaza. 

• I don't think I examined the curbstone. 

4 	Could I ask you to step over here and t
ake a look 

at this curbstone? 

Did you ever see this curbstone before? 

• I don't recall seeing that curbstone. 

• Do you notice anything on that curbstone that 

would appear to you to be made by a bullet or fragment of 

bullet? 

• I could not make a judgment like that just looking 

at it. 

a 	What would you have to do? 

A. 	I would have to thoroughly examine it, micros
copically 
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and instrumental analysis. 

Fine. 

Do you know whether or not any instrumental 

analysis was made of that curbstone? 

• I do not know that of my own knowledge. 

4 	You made no spectrographic analysis of that? 

A 	No. 

• Did you ever see any spectrographic -- report of 

spectrographic analysis made of that curbstone? 

A 	I did not. 

4 	Do you know whether or not that curbstone was 

ever subjected to the neutron activation analysis? 

• I am sure it wasn't. 

• Did you conduct the neutron activation analyses? 

• Yes, I did. 

Q. 	All of them? 

• I don't understand what you mean by all of them. 

Q. 	All of those items which were examined by neutron 

activation analysis with respect to the assassination of 

President Xennedy. 

• As far as I know I did, with the help, of course, 

of Oak Ridge National Laboratory. 

• I want to pass you an exhibit which we have 
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identified for the purposes of these depositions as 

Shaneyfelt Exhibit No. 2 and ask you whether or not you 

have ever seen that before? 

• I don't recall seeing this. 

• Do you recognize the handwriting on it? 

• I am not a handwriting expert. 

• Could it have been done by Mr. Heilman? 

• It could have been. 

Q. 	Who else was working there at the time? 

A 	Special Agent Fred Edwards and Special Agent 

Heilman and myself and Special Agent Heidberger. 

4 	Were you all co-equals or was any one of you 

senior to the other or in a superior position of rank? 

• We were all special agents, FBI; and we were 

assigned to the laboratory. 

• Customarily if one of you prepared a report on a 

spectrographic examination made, would it have been 

circulated among the other members -- let's deal with the 

case of the assassination of President Kennedy. 

• Customarily it wouldn't. 

Now, whether it was on occasion or not, I don't 

recall. 

• With respect to the assassination of President 
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Aennedy in particular? 

• I am sure it wasn't on all occasions. 

I am sure there are occasions when we were all 

around. 

It wouldn't be circulated for initials or anything 

like that. 

4 	Did you have occasion to examine the President's 

tie? 

• I saw the President's clothing, but I do not 

think I examined it. 

That's my recollection now; I don't think I 

examined it. 

4 	Do you recall whether or not you made any 

spectrographic analysis of the items of the President's 

clothing? 

• I do not recall at this time. 

I do not recall. 

4 	Mr. Johnson, do you have those photographs again? 

Excuse me. 

Mr. Gallagher, I wanted to direct one more question 

to you with respect to the curbstone. 

If you would step over to it again, I would like 

you to indicate to me if you see any place on that curbstone 
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from which a spectrographic sample could have been taken. 

• It would be impossible for me, just looking at it, 

h to tell you that. 

direct your attention to this area here which has 

been testified to by Mr. Shaneyfelt as the mark referred to 
I 	

i 1 in reports, subjected to examination to determine whether or 

not a bullet had struck it. 

Do you see any place in that area where a 

spectrographic sample was removed? 

• I see places where it is possible. 

4 	Could you point them out to me? 

• Along the bottom. 

• The bottom edge of that mark? 

• Yes. 

• Thank you. That's all. 

Now, Mr. Johnson has two photographs of a tie. 

The first one that I will ask him to show you is a 

view of the tie taken from the front side of the tie. 

Can you see a nick on that tie? 

A 	Yes, I do. 

• What is the location of the nick? 

• About halfway up on the photograph. 

j. 	With respect to the margins of the tie, sides of 
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the tie, is it in the center, sides, which side? 

A. 	As I am looking at the tie here, it's a little to 

the left, about halfway up. 

• On the right side of the tie as worn by the 

President? 

A. 	It would be on the right side as worn by the 

President, yes. 

Q. 	Is there a sample -- an area where a sample has 

been removed for spectrographic analysis? 

• I cant make a judgment on that from the photo-

graph. 

4 	You do not recall removing a sample for spectro- 

graphic analysis? 

• I do not recall removing a sample. 

4 	Mr. Johnson, would you show him the second tie 

photograph? 

This is the side taken from the back. 

Do you see any nick present on that view of the 

back side of the tie? 

• There is none that's apparent to the naked eye. 

Q. 	Fine. 

Mr. Johnson, you have some photographs there of 

the President's shirt collar, I believe.  
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You have another one, I think, that shows the tears. 

Yea. 

Would you show him that. 

Would you describe that photograph? What does it 

say on the back of back of the photograph? 

• The photograph bears the label, Collar of Shirt 

from -- 
I 

MR. JOHNSON: From back to front. 

THE WITNESS: Of Shirt from back to front. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

4 	Do you see any holes or tears in the collar area. 

• Yes, I do. 

• Do those holes overlap? 

If you button that shirt collar, would the holes 

overlap? 

Orient yourself with respect to the stripe on the 

shirt; does it appear that one hole or tear is higher on the 

shirt than another? 

• I wouldn't want to make a judgment on that. 

4 	Do you see any area there where a spectrographic 

sample was taken for analysis? 

• I cannot make that judgment. 

Do you remember making any spectrographic analysis 

OVER REPORTING tn. mt.  
■'■:L !1. 	•'iut N 

"Ich' 
bout. 



12 

of the President's shirt collar? 

• I do not recall making an examination. 

MR. LESAR: Mr. Johnson, did you bring CE-399? 

MR. JOUNSUO: Yea, I did. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Q, 	Did you have occasion to examine that bullet which 

is CE-399? 

A. 	I believe I did. 

4 	What sort of examination did you make of it? 

• I examined the lead in this particular bullet. 

a 	You examined the lead only? 

• I believe so. 

4 	Do you see an area there where a sample was taken 

for spectrographic analysis? 

• Well, on the bottom here there is an indentation 

which could indicate the area where a sample was taken. 

• Is there any place else on that missile from which 

it appears a spectrographic sample may have been taken? 

A 	It's very difficult for me to make a judyment 

whether it was taken from this place or not or whether it was 

in there from other events. 

a 	Do you recall whether or not any spectrographic 

11 analysis was done on the jacket of the bullet? 
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• I don't recall. 

• Wouldn't you customarily make a spectorgraphic 

examination of the jacket? 

• You mean routinely? 

• Yes. 

• No. 

• Under what circumstances would you do it? 

A 	If we thought it would contribute to the investiga- 

tion. 

Are you familiar with the history of that bullet or 

the history that the Warren Commission attributed to that 

bullet? 

• If my recollection is correct, this is the pristine 

bullet. 

a 	Sometimes referred to as the virtually pristine 

bullet. 

• That's my only recollection of that. 

I think it was found near the body of the President. 

• Do you recall what wounds it is alleged to have 

inflicted upon the President? 

• No. 

• Are you familiar with the autopsy panel report? 

• No, I am not. 
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• You are not familiar with that. 

At the time that you -- 

You did conduct some examinations on that bullet, 

did you not? 

• It is my recollection that I did. 

4 	What were those examinations? 

• I think I conducted spectrographic and neutron 

activation analysis of some of the fragments. 

4 	At the time that you did that, what reports did 

you have available to you? 

Do you recall any reports that you had available 

to you at that time? 

• I had a laboratory work sheet which listed the 

specimens and gave them a number that would be carried in 

the FBI laboratory to identify that. 

4 	I will just ask a few more questions about these 

exhibits and then we can break for lunch. 

Mr. Johnson, I believe you have a picture of the 

enlargement of the collar area and the back of the shirt. 

Mr. Gallagher can read what the back of that 

photograph says. 

• Inside of back of shirt. 

4 	All right. 
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Is there a hole in that photograph of that shirt? 

• There is a hole. 

4 	Does it appear that spectrographic samples have 

been removed from that? 

• I have no way of telling. 

Q. 	Does it appear that there is any place on that 

hole where the material has been cut rather than damaged by 

a bullet? 

• I can't make a judgment like that from a photo-

graph. 

4 	What did you analyze? 

A. 	What did I analyze? 

A. 	Specifically and by means of the neutron activation 

analysis? 

• Paraffin lifts which were taken from Oswald's 

cheek and hands. I analyzed those lifts for primary residue. 

I analyzed fragments of lead. 

Q. 	With respect to this shirt? 

• I don't recall analyzing any fragments of lead 

from that shirt because, actually, I don't know whether there 

were fragments of lead on that shirt or not. 

Qt 	Do you recall analyzing that shirt to determine 

whether or not there were traces of copper on it? 

t3 REPORTING E.G. INC 

N 	i 
1, 

• 'A,. 



16 

• I do not recall analyzing that shirt. 

Where would you have taken the sample from that 

shirt had you wished to do that? 

• That's a supposition that's not true. 

• What? 

• That I took samples from that shirt. 

a 	You are stating you did not? 

• I have no recollection of it, and I think I would 

have if I did. 

Q. 	Where would you get the sample, if you conducted 

the spectrographic analysis of it, where would you get the 

sample from? 

• That would be determined subsequent to my 

microscopic examination. 

• You would make a report of your microscopic 

examination? 

• I would make a report on whether or not I had deemed 

that to be a bullet hole. 

I would put in there that I saw, probably, fragments 

of lead or I didn't, the conclusions I did or did not find 

material that could be associated with the bullet. 

• Did you conduct any X-ray examination of the 

places on the President's clothing where bullets were alleged 
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to have struck? 

• I don't recall making any. 

• Would such an X-ray examination have possibly 

revealed anything helpful? 

• I would only make a judgment of that particular 

type after I had made an examination. 

4 	You did make an examination, did you not? 

b. 	Of this shirt? 

4 	Yes. 

• I don't recall making an examination of that 

shirt. 

4 	Mr. Johnson, would you show him the photograph of 

the collar? 

• I have a photograph here bearing the number 5 on 

the back. 

a 	What is the photograph of? 

• The photograph is of a stained, striped shirt 

collar area and a tie. 

a 	Do there appear to be tears in the shirt collar? 

A 	There could be a tear in the shirt collar. 

a 	Just one? 

• Below the button. 

a 	Below the button. 
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There are several horizontal stripes below the 

button, three immediately below it and two more right at 

the edge of the collar area. 

Is it below that that you are talking about? 

It's below the button. 

a 	I would like to hand you a Xerox of a photograph 

which was introduced in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit 

No. 60 on February 24, and I would like you to take this red 

pen that I have here and mark areas where you see tears. 

MR. RYAN: I think I will have to object to the 

question. 

The witness is attempting to indicate where he 

thinks there might be tears, but it is purely speculative. 

i t 	
MR. LESAR: He was putting several circles, I 

gather, on the photograph. 

THE WITNESS: I can't tell. 

MR. RYAN: There is no way of telling from this 

photograph. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Fine. 

Let me return to the question of the spectrographic 

analysis. 

The photograph showing the hole in the back of the 
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President's shirt, if you were called upon to make a 

spectrographic analysis to determine whether or not a bullet 

had passed through that hole, where would you take your 

spectrographic samples from? 

• I would take it from the area in the neighborhood 

of the hole which appeared to be most profitable subsequent 

to a microscopic examination. 

• Would this be around the edges of the hole? 

• Could be. 

Could be a little removed. 

It is whatever it appears to be would be more 

profitable at the time I was making an examination. 

MR. LESAR: I think that probably concludes the 

use we will need to make of the materials that were brought 

here by Mr. Johnson; and what I would suggest is that we 

will br6ak for lunch. 

MR. RYAN: What other areas are you going to touch 

upon? 

MR. LESAR: We haven't begun to touch upon what 

specific tests were performed, spectrographic and neutron 

activation, and what specific reports were made. 

I think that's going to have to go quite some time. 

MR. RYAN: Excuse me for one moment. 
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MR. LESAR: Mr. Johnson and his assistant can 

What do you want, half hour, 45 minutes? 

MR. RYAN: 45 minutes. 

We will be here at 12:45. 

(Whereupon, at 12:00 noon, a luncheon recess was 

taken, to reconvene this same day at 12:45 p.m.) 
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AFTERNOON SESSION 

(12:47 p.m.) 

MR. LESAR: Ready to proceed. 

Before I begin to resume questioning, I want to 

have the reporter mark this photograph of the President's 

shirt collar area which Mr. Gallagher marked in red pen as 

areas where there might be holes or tears. 

I would like to have you put an exhibit number on 

that for the record. 

(The document referred to was 

marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 1 

for identification.) 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Mr. Gallagher, you are familiar with two FBI 

agents, Mr. Francis O'Neill and James Sibert? 

I can't place O'Neill. 

I know Sibert. 

MR. LESAR: I want to show you a copy of a report 

that I would like put into the record as Gallagher Exhibit 2. 

(The document referred to was 

marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 2 

for identification.) 

21 
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RY MR. LESAR: 

• Would you read the text of that document? 

• This is from Francis X. O'Neill, Jr., Agent, FBI 

and James W Sibert, Agent, FBI, to Captain J. H. Stover, Jr., 

Commanding Officer, U. S. Naval Medical School, National 

Naval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland. 

"We hereby acknowledge receipt of a missile 

removed by Commander James J. Humes, MC, USN on this date." 

Signed Francis X. O'Neill and James W. Sibert, 

Do you know what missile this refers to? 

• I have no way of knowing. 

Could it be the missile that you examined this 

morning, Commission Exhibit 399? 

• I have no way of knowing. 

a 	You don't know whether or not you ever performed 

y tests on that missile? 

• I don't know what the missile is. 

• From the use of the term missile, what do you 

think it might include? 

• Anything that could move through the air. 

• Would it include a substantially intact bullet? 

A. 	Anything that could move through the air could be 

considered a missile in my terminology. 
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Are you familiar with the Sibert-O'Neill report? 

This is a report which was made by those two FBI 

agents on their observations of the President's autopsy. 

• I never even knew they even covered the autopsy, 

• You never saw any report on the autopsy? 

• I don't know even whether they did prepare a report 

• Then I take it that their report was not discussed 

at any conference of which you were a part? 

• I have no knowledge whatsoever of the existence of 

a report of that character. 

• This morning you testified -- 

A 	Excuse me, 

I might want to add there is no reason in the world 

if they did make a report like that that they would brief 

me . 

• This morning you testified you examined some bullet 

fragments in connection with the President's assassination. 

• Yes, I did. 

a 	What was the history of those fragments? 

• The only fragment that I have a distinct recollection 

of is the lead taken from the alleged pristine type bullet. 

The other fragments, I cannot recall what they were. 

I think they were taken from Kennedy's body, but I 
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can't be sure. 

4 	Did Mr. Sibert or Mr. O'Neill ever deliver to y
ou 

any fragments in connection with the President'
s assassina-

tion? 

• I didn't even know they were associated with th
e 

President's assassination. 

4 	Did FBI Agent Robert Frazie
r ever receive any 

fragments relating to the President's assassina
tion? 

• I have no way of knowing. 

• Did Mr. Frazier ever give any fragments to you?
 

• I examined fragments from Frazier and returned 

them to him. 

4 	What did they consist of, to
 your recollection? 

I don't remember, except they were associated w
ith 

the Kennedy assassination. 

a 	Do you recall how many there were? 

• No, I don't. 

4 	The Sibert-O'Neill report, which
 was dated on the 

23rd of November, 1963, the day after the Presi
dent was shot, 

states that two fragments measuring 7 by 2 mill
imeters and 

1 by 2 millimeters were removed from the right 
side of the 

President's brain. 

Were those fragments tested? 
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• I have no recollection of the fragments, now, that 

were tested. 

I think those were tested, but I have no positive 

recollection. 

What tests do you think would have been performed 

on them? 

• Well, they would probably be spectrographic and 

neutron activation. 

a 	In 1967, the then-Attorney General of the United 

States, Ramsey Clark, established a panel to review the 

autopsy X-rays and photographs of the Kennedy assassination 

and that panel issued a report in 1968. 

Are you familiar with that report? 

• No, sir. 

a 	Was a copy of the report ever made available to 

you? 

• No. 

• Were you consulted in its preparation? 

• On the Clark report? 

• Yes. 

• No, I was not. 

• Do you know of anyone else in connection with the 

FBI that was associated or consulted with respect to that 
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report? 

• No. 

• Did you ever review the X-rays and photographs 

of the President's autopsy? 

• I don't recall ever having seen them. 

L 	Did you consult with anyone who had seen them?
 

• I had no reason to consult with anybody who had 

seen them. 

• In order to conduct the tests that you intended 

to carry out; it was not necessary to see those films and 

establish the location and character of the wounds? 

• I was given isolated fragments which were designated 

as having come from certain places associated from the 

Kennedy body and the pristine bullet and asked to compare 

it. 

My examination has nothing to do with where they 

are found as far as I am concerned. 

I was asked to compare the composition. 

• Who asked you to make these comparisons? 

• Frazier was what we refer to as the number one 

examiner, I believe, on that case at the time. 

As the number one examiner, he reads what has come 

in, what the specimens are, and then makes some judgments as 
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to what can be done about them. 

If he can't make a judgment, he calls us in and we 

discuss it. 

I thought I could make an analysis of some of 

these fragments. 

• lie did call you in? 

• We did discuss it. 

Ls. 	Were there many conferences or just one or two? 

• I don't recall. 

a 	You don't recall? 

• No, I do not recall. 

4 	Were there any notes made of those consultations 

or conferences or any reports made on them? 

at 	The conferences Frazier and I had? 

• Yes. 

• Generally speaking, there were no notes made on 

them unless, for example, I had to make arrangements to go 

down to Oak Ridge, Tennessee. 

That is some that's out-of-house, you might say; 

so I had to make some kind of a note to my superior to get 

approval to go down to Oak Ridge and make this examination. 

Other than that, there wouldn't, as a routine thing, 

be a memorandum or note or anything written about us 
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discussing some particular item. 

We would never get anything done. 

• Do I understand you correctly; there were 

conferences both with respect to the spectrographic and 

neutron activation analysis, or would you specify what you 

conferred with Mr. Frazier about? 

• You asked me how did I get these fragments. 

I said I got these fragments, I'm sure, from 

Frazier. 

1 

! 
Frazier was the recipient of specimens as they 

can into the laboratory. 

Frazier could have called me in -- I don't recall 

it -- but if he did, I would have said, "Sure, I can handle 

specimens of that nature." 

a 	You are saying you don't recall whether or not he 

called you in? 

am saying, whether he made a judgment from his 

experience or whether he called me in, I can't recall that 

detail. 

• Was Mr. Frazier qualified in spectrographic analysis? 

A. 	No. 

Q Was he qualified in neutron activation analysis? 

A. 	No, he was not. 
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If he made a judgment that was wrong, 
of course, he 

would be corrected by me. 

4 	If he made a judgmen
t to do or not to do certain 

tests, you would correct him? 

• If he sent me something and gave me 
a list of 

specimens for a neutron activation ex
amination and in my 

judgment I didn't think that would b
e an appropriate type 

of examination, I would certainly di
scuss that with Frazier 

and Frazier would be objective about
 it. 

Q Would Mr. Frazier consult anyone els
e other than 

you about making spectrographic and 
neutron activation 

analysis? 

• Absolutely. 

He would discuss or assign these things to any 

agent examiner in the spectrographic
 unit. 

• In the spectrographic unit only? 

• If it was a matter that related to spectrographic 

matters. 

Would he discuss it with Mr. Jevons 
or Mr. Conrad? 

A 	I don't know. 

• The autopsy panel report issued in 1
968 says that 

there was a 6.5 millimeter fragment imbedded in 
the outer 

table of the President's skull close
 to the edge of the hole, 
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to the right of the midline. 

Was that 6.5 millimeter fragment ever tested? 

A 	I don't recall. 

4 	Was it ever removed? 

• I don't recall the fragments that I tested now. 

It has been 12 years. 

Q. 	Let me ask you another question. 

Should that fragment have been tested? 

• I can't make a judgment on that. 

• The panel report says there was this 6.5 millimeter 

fragment in the President's head. 

Would it be of utility to your examinations to test 

that fragment? 

• If I saw it I could make that judgment. 

If you saw such a fragment in a film or if you were 

informed of the existence -- 

A 	If I had that fragment to look at microscopically, 

I could make that judgment. 

• You couldn't make that determination until you had 

it? 

• I would have to make that judgment after I looked 

at it microscopically. 

• If you were aware that that fragment existed, you 
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would want to look at it under a microscope? 

• If it would contribute to the investigation. 

4 	You would have to examine it microscopically first 

in order to make that examination, right? 

• Normally. 

By the same token, I respect Frazier's judgment, 

too, if he made the microscopic examination. 

Q. 	What if no microscopic examination was made? 

Suppose you knew the fragment was in the President's 

skull. Would you request it be removed so you could make an 

examination of it? 

• I didn't know it was in the skull. 

Assuming that you had known that. 

• I can't answer that. 

4 	Would your microscopic examination of a fragment 

disclose the chemical analysis of the bullet? 

• Chemical elements present? 

• What chemical elements would be disclosed by 

microscopic examination? 

A 	By microscopic examination, you don't discover the 

elements. 

You do it by subsequent spectrographic examination. 

Q. 	That's what I was driving at. 
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Then why do you do the microscopic examination? 

A 	There is a lot of specimens that, if they weren't 

so highly contaminated, or for some other reason, we would 

just pass over them for examination. 

In other words, you have got to have a representa-

tive specimen. 

• I understand that. 

Does that apply to neutron activation analysis? 

• It applies to all kinds. 

If you. take a coin out of your pocket -- it applies 

to that, too -- if you take a coin out of your pocket and 

it's a whole coin, you say, "That's a quarter." 

If I cut it down too far, what will you say it is? 

What could have contaminated the fragment inside 

the skull of the President? 

• I can't make any judgment on that. 

• How big a sample do you have to have in order to 

make a proper chemical analysis? 

Take spectrographically first. 

A 	A fragment about the size of a common pin head. 

• How many millimeters of a bullet would you have to 

have? 

A. 	A millimeter square would be adequate if it's a 
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representative sample. 

For neutron activation analysis? 

• Now, you use this term for a proper examination; 

is that what you are saying? 

Haw big a sample would you need in order to make 

a neutron activation analysis? 

A 	Probably a half a millimeter on each side, roughly. 

a 	The fragment in the President's skull is said to 

have been 6.5 millimeters, so it would have been adequate 

for the purposei of either spectrographic analysis or neutron 

activation analysis. 

1 	A. 	I could get a sample that's 20 millimeters and it 

wouldn't be adequate if highly contaminated. 

a 	What could have contaminated a fragment in the 

President's head? 

• What did it go through? 

• The President's head. 

A 	What else? 

a 	According to the FBI, the President's head. 

A 	I can't sit here at a table and make a judgment 

why or why not an examination was made or not made. 

• For what purposes did you subject items of evidence 

in the President's assassination to spectrographic analysis? 
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• In order to see if they compared as far as their 

chemical composition is concerned. 

• Let me read to you from the text of a memorandum 

from Mr. Jevons to Mr. Conrad, November 27, 1963: 

In connection with our examination of evidence 

in the above matter" -- referring to the assassination of 

President Kennedy -- "we have considered all possible examina-

tions and techniques which could be productive in identify-

ing the perpetrator of the crime ... " 

What examinations and techniques were considered? 

• I don't recall that memo. 

• Did you ever confer with Mr. Jevons about the 

assassination of President Kennedy? 

• I conferred with Jevons and Frazier on occasions: 

but when and how often, I don't remember. 

a 	Did you confer separately and individually or -- 

• I don't recall. 

5 	Is Mr. Jevons an expert in any scientific fields? 

• Jevons was associated with the petrographic 

section of the laboratory before he went into the adminis-

trative office. 

Ij 
	

What does that section do? 

• They analyze with a petrographic microscope both 
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artificial and natural mixtures of minerals. 

Would he have been familiar or qualified as an 

expert in the areas of spectrographic and neutron activation 

analysis? 

A 	He was knowledgeable in those areas. 

a 	But not qualified as an expert? 

• Not to my knowledge, no. 

a 	So that when he says, "We have considered all 

possible examinations and techniques," he must have been 

relying upon advice received from you or someone else with 

respect to spectrographic analysis and neutron activation 

analysis? 

A. 	He could have been relying on what he knew, on 

other people in the unit. 

I don't know who he was relying on. 

• All right. 

This indicates "We have considered all possible 

examinations and techniques which would be productive in 

identifying the perpetrator of the crime." 

Was that the purpose of the tests you conducted, 

to identify the perpetrator of the crime? 

• Certainly. 

The reasons for my tests were to compare fragments 
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and nee if all were associated with the same source. 

• Did you make tests and examinations to establish 

that they were not connected with the sane source? 

A 	I think that follows. 

If they are not from the same source, and you 

can make a definitive judgment, you can say they are from 

a different source. 

• Let me rephrase the question. 

Did you conduct tests designed to eliminate the 

possibility that,Oswald was the perpetrator of the crime? 

A 	I don't try to conduct tests to prove that Oswald 

was or was not. 

I conduct tests to see whether these metal frag-

ments match in composition or do not. 

If they match, I report that. If they don't, I 

report that. 

I have to put it out as it comes out of the 

instruments as interpreted by me. 

• Did you conduct examinations and testa which were 

designed to determine whether or not more than one person 

could have been the perpetrator of the assassination? 

• I conducted tests to sae if bullet fragments 

matched in composition. 
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I performed tests on the paraffin to see if they 

could be associated with the firing of the weapon. 

Those are the immediate purposes for which I 

examined these specimens. 

4 	Did you make any spectrographic analysis of the 

empty shells found in the TSBD? 

• I believe I did make an examination of shells. 

I don't know where they were found at this stage. 

• Did you compare them -- did you make a spectro-

graphic comparison of them? 

• Yes, I believe I did. 

Q. 	What form would that take? 

A. 	I don't know whether it was a spectrographic or 

neutron activation test now, really. 

I think I did, though; but I am not sure of that 

particular thing. 

• Assuming that you might have done it, how would you 

do it is what I am driving at. 

• I could do it by emission spectrograph. 

4 	What would you do? 

A. 	I could spark the sample or burn the sample. 

4 	If you burn a sample, what sort of records are 

created? 
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• Spectrographic plates. 

4 	Then you write down notes on what you observe on 

the spectrographic plates? 

A 	Normally. 

t.L 	Do you type up reports? 

• No. 

I do not type up reports. 

a 	You would make a report which would be put in 

typed form? 

• I might not make the report. 

I might give the data to Frazier, for example, 

and then to incorporate it in his report. 

• I see. 

What elements would you be testing for in testing 

those empty shells? 

A 	Any that I could see. 

4 	How many would you normally expect to see? 

• There is no such a thing. 

Every one of these things has to be viewed and the 

determination made on an individual basis. 

Q. 	With respect to the ammunition of the type allegedly 

used by Oswald? 

• I don't know. 
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• Did you test for the chemical composition of the 

empty shell itself? 

• I don't know whether I did or not at this stage of 

the game. 

I have analyzed empty shells, but I don't know if 

I did in this case or somebody else did. 

a 	If you didn't make such a test, how could you make 

a match? 

• I wouldn't make a match, but that doesn't say 

somebody else didn't. 

I don't know whether I did or not. 

4 	Did you consider -- other than spectrographic and 

neutron activation analysis -- did you consider other tests; 

for example, analysis of the residues on bullet 399? 

▪ Specifically what residue are you talking about? 

• Either human or any other residues; human, first? 

• I wouldn't analyze anything for human residue. 

• Why not? 

• That's not my expertise. 

Q. 	You did observe the President's tie and shirt collar, 

I believe? 

A. 	The photographs. 

• The photographs. 
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You did not ever observe the shirt and tie? 

• If I did observe them, I think it was real casually. 

• Did you form any opinion as to whether or not the 

tears in the collar and the nick on the tie had been formed by 

a bullet? 

• I don't recall making that judgment. 

a 	Now, how many chemical elements would you find -- 

the range of the number of chemical elements you would normally 

find in that bullet? 

• The range of chemical elements? 

• Yeah, how many? 

• By what examination? 

• By spectrographic examination. 

• Oh, you might find, by the emission spectrograph, 

you might find sometimes 12. 

Q. 	Could you name some of them? 

• Lead, antimony, copper, silver, gold, bismuth, 

magnesium, silicon, to name a few, 

Q. 	Do you draw a distinction between elements and 

trace elements? 

• I don't know what you mean. 

4 	Sometimes some of the literature on the subject 

refers to trace elements; antimony, for example. 
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• Antimony is an element. 

Now, a trace element is a small amount of antimony, 

probably .001 percent, would be a trace of antimony, 

You say you might find up to 12 elements in a 

bullet by means of emission spectrograph. 

• You might. 

• You might. 

What would the range normally be? 

What is the fewest you would expect to find and, 

on the average, how many would you expect to find? 

• I don't have that data. 

a 	With respect to neutron activation analysis of the 

bullet, how many elements could you find present in a 

bullet and how many would you normally expect to find? 

• Probably about three. 

You would only find three? 

• Yea. 

• By means of neutron activation analysis? 

A. 	Yes. 

a 	Why does the spectrographic analysis reveal more 

than the neutron activation analysis? 
• 

• Why does it? 

Well, actually, when you are using the spectrograph, 
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41 

It of antimony, 

mony. 

nts in a 

ou have got more or less a shotgun approach. With neutron 

activation analysis, you have more of a rifle approach. 

You have many elements that can be seen on the 

emission spectrograph, and then when we wanted to quantify 

these elements and try to measure them accurately, the amount 

present, we try to get the three we can see on the neutron 

activation analysis procedure. 

• Of the twelve elements or so that you can see on 

the spectrographic plates, there are only three that you can 

test for by neutron activation analysis? 

• No, there are more than three. 

Normally copper, antimony and silver. 

• How about bismuth? 

• I don't think you would see bismuth. 

• How about barium? 

• You could see barium. 

• When you say there are about twelve elements that 

you can detect by means of emission spectrograph, do you 

mean more or less all in the bullet? 

How many would be present in the jacket of the 

bullet and how many in the core? 

• I don't know. 

• Would you find more in the core than in the jacket?
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• I don't know offhand. 

I would have to analyze them and see. 

• Can the spectrograph pick up all the elements 

present in the bullet? 

• I don't know any procedure than can pick up all 

the elements in any specimen. 

a 	All right. 

MR. RYAN: Are you asking Mr. Gallagher to state 

what current laboratory techniques can find -- or on the 

basis of his experience working with the laboratory those 

many years ago during the Kennedy assassination? 

MR. LESAR: State of the technology when President 

Kennedy was shot. 

That should be understood. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Q. 	There was a live round of ammunition found in the 

rifle, the murder weapon, in the Mannlicher-Carcano rifle. 

How many chemical elements were identified as 

present in that round? 

don't know. 

4 	Did you test that round? 

B. 	I don't know. 

4 	Should you have tested that round? 
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• Somebody probably did, and it might have been me; 

but I don't remember. 

It would have been normal to test that round? 

What I am asking, you have got a live round found 

in a rifle that's alleged to have fired the shots that 

killed the President. 

You normally would test that round, wouldn't you? 

• I would have to know all the circumstances surround 

ing that. 

Somebody might have said, "Don't." 

Q. 	And if they said, "Don't," you wouldn't have? 

• I examine the specimens that are brought in to me. 

a 	I thought you were the expert on those procedures. 

A 	I am one of the experts in these procedures, one 

of the experts. 

• Who else would possibly have told you not to test? 

A. 	Nobody would tell me not to test. 

There might be circumstances surrounding the 

examination where they didn't want it touched. 

a 	would you elaborate on that? 

I am most mystified by that. 

What possible circumstances could there be for not 
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testing the round found in the rifle? 

• I don't know offhand. 

Probably it was tested. If it was paramount to 

have it tested, it was tested. 

Q. 	What would you normally test -- 

A. 	There are some times where it is more important, 

blood, for example, covering the surface of the thing. 

have had cases like that. 

They told us, "Don't take anything off; the thing 

is soaked in blood and that's what I want." 

You have to know all the details of the investiga- 

tion. 

4 	Absent something that contaminated the bullet or 

evidentiary purpose that had a higher demand on it, you 

would have tested that bullet? 

• The chances are it would have been, yes, definitely.', 

Q. 	If you were told not to test that bullet, would you 

inquire why? 

A 	Yes. 

Certainly. 

I would be told why. 

• Do you recall anyone telling you why that bullet 

should not be tested? 
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• I don't know for a fact it wasn't tested. 

I don't know whether it was or wasn't tested. 

4 	With respect to the spectrographic analysis of the 

President'-s clothing, you made that spectrographic analysis, 

did you not? 

• I don't think I did. 

I don't remember making it. 

• no you recall whether or not -- 

Do you recall having seen any report on the testing 

of the President's clothing? 

• At this stage, I don't recall. 

It has been 14 years since I have seen these 

reports -- 13 years. If I could see the report, I could 

probably give you some -- 

4 	I will pass you a folder which contains spectro- 

graphic analysis. 

A 	I might point out here that that entire cartridge 

there which is defined in the FBI laboratory report as Q-8 

was judged to be of the same manufacturer as Q-6 and Q-7, 

6.5 millimeter Mannlicher-Carcano cartridges, Western 

Cartridge Company, as was the 6.5 millimeter Q-8. 

There probably is the answer. They know where it 

came from. 
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a 	You don't know the che
mical composition, do you? 

A 	That's why you analyze,
 to see if it came from the 

same source. 

If I gave you a two-cent or ei
ght-cent stamp, you 

would say, "This is a United S
tates stamp." 

Would you send it in to me to 
have me analyze the 

glue and ink? 

a 	Would you analyze it
 to determine whether or not 

other fragments associated wit
h the murder are of the same 

chemical composition as it? 

A 	You had other specimens
 there. 

Q What other specimens? 

A 	The pristine bullet, whic
h was the same as these. 

a 	was there any question
 about whether or not that 

bullet was actually the one wh
ich shot the President or 

Governor Connally? 

• Which bullet? 

• The bullet you examined this m
orning, CE-399. 

A 	Is there any question? 

Yea. 

A 	I can't make a judgmen
t on that. 

I didn't make that examination
. 

• If you couldn't make that 
judgment, then you needed 
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to test the bullet in the Mannlicher-Carcano, did you not? 

• No, because did not that bullet come from the same 

rifle? 

• The bullets had all been chambered, including in 

different rifles. 

• I can't make a judgment. 

I know I just pointed out to you that there are 

circumstances which I didn't know when I started thds conver-

sation which would hinge on whether or not an examination 

would be made. 

This is just one of a maze of circumstances. 

I don't know them all at this particular date. 

I think sound judgments were made all along the 

line. 

4 	Would you expect to find human tissue on a bullet 

that is alleged to have passed through two men? 

A. 	I will not make any judgment on that. 

• Did you make any observation on the bullet to see 

whether or not it had such residues? 

A. 	I do not -- that's not my area of expertise. 

• Who would have done that? 

A 	Somebody in the serology section. 

Q. 	Do you recall that the spectrographic examination 
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of the President's clothing found no copper on the President' 

shirt collar and the President's tie? 

• I don't recall that. 

• Were you ever consulted about that? 

• I don't recall having been consulted about that. 

4 	I want to show you a copy of a letter to Mr. Rankin 

from Mr. J. Edgar Hoover, dated March 18, 1964, and ask you 

whether or not you are familiar with this document. 

• Yes. 

4 	Would you read aloud the top paragraph on the 

second page of that document? 

• On the second page of the document, 

"4. Would neutron activation analyses show if a 

bullet passed through the hole in the front of President 

Kennedy's shirt near the collar button area and also if a 

bullet passed through the material of his tie? Neutron 

activation is a sensitive analytical technique to determine 

elements present in a substance. During the course of the 

spectrographic examinations previously conducted of the 

fabric surrounding the hole in the front of the shirt, 

including the tie, no copper was found in excess of that 

present elsewhere in undamaged areas of the shirt and tie. 

Therefore, no copper was found which could be attributed to 
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projectile fragments." 

MR. LESAR: I would like to have the reporter 

label that as Gallagher Exhibit 3. 

(The document referred to was 

marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 3 

for identification.) 

BY MR. LESAR; 

• To resume with the questioning, with respect to 

this question which Mr. Rankin posed to Mr. Hoover, "Would 

neutron activation analyses show if a bullet passed through 

the hole in the front of President Kennedy's shirt near the 

collar button area and also if a bullet passed through the 

material of his tie?" -- what is the answer to that question?' 

• Normally, no. 

• It would not show whether or not it passed through? 

• Normally, no. 

• Why not? 

A. 	Neutron activation analysis will not pick up lead 

by what we call the thermal neutron analysis procedure. 

It will pick up copper. 

When you have a shirt like that, you cannot pick 

the pieces of particles or copper off the shirt. You have 

to take a sample around the hole as was done in this case 
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and analyze it on the spectrograph to see the copper. 

Now, when you take a piece of a shirt and you put 

it in a reactor and you activate, the shirt has an abundance 

of sodium in it and sodium just wipes out everything. 

You would have to make a chemical separation. It 

would be the wrong way to go. 

• Wrong for what reason? 

• It would not be the appropriate examination to 

use. 

• What do you mean by that? 

• Exactly that. 

For example, there are examinations that you use 

for blood. You would not analyze a blood sample by neutron 

activation analysis or spectrograph. 

There are examinations which are appropriate. 

In the judgment of everybody in the business, 

neutron activation analysis would not be the appropriate 

examination for a bullet hole. 

O I can understand you are saying it would not be. 

What I don't understand is the reason. 

• I can't make it any clearer. 

• Are you saying it would destroy the tie? 

• I said if you find a piece of cloth, the cloth has 
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an abundance of sodium, especially something that has been 

worn like a shirt, and that just wipes out your analysis. 

Sodium had a large cross section for thermAl 

neutron capture. This cross section, great ability to eat 

up neutrons in the reactor and becomes highly activated. 

When you put your data on a multi-channel analyzer, 

all you see is sodium. 

Why would you do something like that when there is 

an examination that is more appropriate? 

Q Would the spectrographic analysis determine whether 

or not a bullet struck those areas of the President's 

clothing? 

R. 	You want me to give you a probability on it? 

Q. 	Yes. 

• I can't do that. 

Sometimes it does and sometimes it doesn't. 

Every one of these examinations has to be evaluated' 

on its own merit. 

a 	It apparently did give an analysis with respect to 

the back of the shirt. 

• I certainly would believe that. 

• Would it not do the same thing with respect to the 

collar and the tie? 
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• I don't know. 

What does it say there? 

He goes on to say that, "Neutron activation is a 

sensitive analytical technique to determine elements present 

in a substance. During the course of the spectrographic 

examinations previously conducted of the fabric surroundi
ng 

the hole in the front of the shirt, including the tie, no
 

copper was found in excess of that present elsewhere in 

undamaged areas of the shirt and tie. Therefore, no copper 

was found which could be attributed to projectile fragmen
ts." 

In short, I interpreted that to mean that there was 

no copper found that could be attributed to a bullet on t
he 

tie and the shirt collar. 

Is that sufficient to determine that no bullet 

struck those areas? 

• I don't know. 

• Did you make any comparison between the spectro- 

graphic finding with respect to the hole in the back of the 

President's shirt which showed copper and the findin
g with 

respect to the tie and shirt collar which did not show 

copper? 

• I don't recall making that examination. 

• Would there have been a report on whether or not 
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that examination had been made? 

• I don't know. 

A 	Would there be a report of the results of that 

examination? 

A. 	If the examination was made, there would be a 

report. 

a 	A written report? 

A 	You mean a handwritten report? 

Handwritten or typed. 

• I imagine it would be sent out as a report. 

a 	You mean a typed report? 

A 	Normally a report is sent out on the examinations 

that are conducted. 

A 	Is it common for the chemical composition of a 

bullet to vary from one location to another within the bullet/ 

• It's possible. 

a 	How much would the variation be? 

• Anywhere from none at all to a huge amount. 

a 	Would there be a qualitative variation; in other 

words, would you find chemical elements present at the nose 

of a bullet which you would not find at the base end of a 

bullet? 

A 	It's possible. 
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But it's not likely, I take it? 

• It's not likely under normal conditions. 

• Would that apply to both the jacket and to the 

core? 

• 	

I don't know. 

• 	

Would there be a quantitative variation? 

A. 	You are asking me to make judgments here on this 

stuff; is that what you are asking me to do? 

Q. 	I an just seeking information from you based upon 

your experience, would you expect to find variations with
in 

a bullet from one end to the other in the chemical compos
i-

tion, quantitative amount of chemical element differences? 

MR. RYAN: That seems to be a hypothetical question 

which doesn't seem to have a foundation in this case. 

MR. LESAR: I want to find out if they performed 

tests to find out if there were such examinations. 

MR. RYAN: Is there something that says there were 

variations in the chemical compositions? 

MR. LESAR: That's what I am trying to find out. 

MR. RYAN: The witness can testify as to whether 

he knows there were any reports that indicated variations. 

THE WITNESS: I don't know. 
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BY MR. LESAR: 

Q. 	You don't know wheth
er there were any variations in 

the bullets of the type of ammunitions al
legedly used in the 

assassination? 

• I can't answer that question. 

t.L 	Why not? 

• Because it's too vague. 

4 	Let's try and refine it.
 

Did you perform any tests in connection w
ith the 

President's assassination on ammunition o
f the type allegedly 

used in the assassination to determine wh
ether or not the 

chemical composition of that type of ammu
nition varied within 

a bullet? 

• Studies were made of that for various typ
es of 

bullets. 

Including the Western ammunition? 

• I believe so; studies before the assassin
ation, 

studies were made 

• Of that particular type of ammunition? 

A. 	For the examiners' background informat
ion. 

4 	I am asking you specif
ically -- you had ammunition 

of the type allegedly used in the assassi
nation. 

Did you take that ammunition and perform 
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spectrographic and neu
tron activation analys

is on it to 

determine the chemical
 composition of the bu

llet at various 

locations in the bulle
t? 

• Yes, we did; except in
 the case of the prist

ine 

bullet, we couldn't ge
t to because we were a

sked to keep it 

for posterity. 

• And you made reports on what results we
re obtained? 

• The results of the bul
let fragments? 

• I am not talking about
 bullet fragments. 

I am. talking about the oth
er ammunition. 

• Of course we didn't. T
his was background inf

orma-

tion. 

I analyze 100 samples 
of paint to get backgr

ound 

information. This is my homework, what I have to d
o for 

homework so I understa
nd what I am talking about. 

▪ That's what I am getti
ng at. 

In order to evaluate y
our results of spectro

graphic 

analysis of bullets an
d fragments, you have 

to have a control 

don't you? 

You need to analyze other examples of that same 

type of ammunition in 
order to determine wha

t variations 

are found within the chemical composition with
in a particular 

bullet? 

HOOVER REPORTING CO, INC. 

120 Massachus,Ilsdvruuc N 

Wa.shittruti a I: ,:01)11z 

01,2 ' 



58 

• Are you telling me what I need? 

I am asking you. 

• We had what we needed to make the judgments we made. 

I had an analysis of the bullets which I determined 

to be representative samples from these bullets. 

• Which were those? 

• I don't know. 

I don't have the reports. 

a 	Are you saying that the representative sample is 

CE-399? 

I took a sample from 399. 

• Did you have other bullets that you made tests on? 

• I don't recall. 

I don't recall. 

The only thing I do know is that I took represen- 

tative specimens from these fragments and bullets as best I 

could. 

I made judgments on what the data showed, 

When you take specimens from different areas of the 

sample, you get an idea -- feel for the variation, which I 

do not have at this date. 

What sort of variations did you find? 

• I don't know at this time. 
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13 years later, I don't recall t
he data on that. 

Q. 	Do you recall whe
ther or not the chemical mix was

 

relatively consistent within the
 samples? 

A. 	I don't recall. 

a 	Would you have made tests,
 also, upon the jackets 

of that type of ammunition to de
termine whether there was 

variation from one place to anot
her on the jacket? 

• I don't recall whether I did or 
not. 

a 	All right. 

You don't recall, for example, w
hether or not 

there was any variation -- 

Did you take more than one sampl
e from CE-399 

for spectrographic examination? 

• I don't recall. 

• Therefore you cannot recall whet
her or not there 

was any variation from different
 locations on that bullet? 

• 399? 

I don't recall. 

a 	Did you test -- the sampl
es you took, say from the 

base of 399, subjected to the sp
ectrographic analysis and, 

I think, neutron activation analysis. 

How many times did you test the 
sample? 

• I don't know offhand. 
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I know it was more than once, but I don't know 

whether it was six or five times. 

• Let's take spectrographic analysis first. 

If you have a sample of the core of a bullet and 

you subject it to spectrographic testing several times, do 

you get identical results in each testing? 

• You don't get identical results in any type of 

testing. Every type of testing has instrumental error, 

measurement error of some type. 

If I .asked you to measure the length of this table 

to .02 millimeters, you couldn't get identical results if 

you did that more than one time. 

The term doesn't mean anything. 

• What I want to know, what is the range of error? 

Did you determine what the range of error would 

be? 

• Yes, I did. 

• How did you determine that? 

• I determined it from my standard deviations. 

4 	You applied the standard deviation to the samples? 

A. 	Yes. 

a 	How do you obtain the standard deviation? 

• The standard deviation? 
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MR. RYAN: Can you relate that question specifica to a particular item of evidence in the Kennedy assassinati,  rather than making it a generalized question? 
MR. LESAR: Yeah. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

4 	What was the maximum variation that you found -- 
A 	I don't remember. 

4 	Let me show you a folder of your neutron activatiol analysis and see if you can determine it from that. 
• No. I can't determine it from this. 
• Would there be any sort of record in which you coul determine what the maximum variation was? 
• I could take and tabulate these and figure it out. • Would you ordinarily -- you would ordinarily 

tabulate the results on those notes there before you would be able to figure out the variation? 
A 	I mean, looking at this I couldn't. 

But at the time as I was going along with this, I was keeping book on it and I knew what was going on. I was following the thing. 

I was into it I was living it. 
4 	You listed all the elements, and then you listed the results for each of them? 
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A 	I might not have listed them. I might have made 

calculations as I went along. 

1.1 	Can you determine from those sheets whether you 

made calculations as you went along? 

How could I? 

This is the essential data. 

If anybody wants to go back and check my work, 

the essential data is here. 

( 	Who else could understand them but you? 

Anybody down at Oak Ridge, Tennessee, can under-

stand these things; anybody doing neutron activation analysis 

can follow these things very clearly. 

Every single peice of data that they need is here. 

MR. RYAN: I object. 

I don't think it is fair to ask the witness to try 

to remember every calculation which he might have made or 

somebody might have made in the laboratory 13 years ago. 

It's asking too much. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Could the Warren Commission have made the proper 

calculations from those notes? 

A. 	The Warren Commission -- I don't know whether they 

could or not, but I know anybody in the business can. 
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Did you give them a report on the nuetron activation 

analysis? 

• A report? 

A letter went out to Rankin, I think, on some of 

this stuff. 

• Who did you submit your report to on this? 

• Who did I submit it to? 

• Yes. 

• I submitted it to the files. 

It went to Rankin. 

• Commission's general counsel? 

• He got a copy of the results. 

• What do you recall about that report? 

• I had to wedge this data in with the Oak Ridge 

atomic reactor data. 

• I believe you will see the dates on those work 

sheets, I think May 15. 

Is that correct? 

A. 	Yes. 

a 	What explains the long delay in conducting neutron 

activation analysis on these items? 

lL 	You can see from all the reports that were 

furnished that there was no delay whatsoever in any of the 
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reports that were in-house. 

This here requires an atomic reactor. 

At that particular time, the atomic reactor that 
we chose to use, which was a real good reactor, was at Oak 
Ridge, Tennessee. We can't just walk in there like we own 
the reactor. 

It has a fuel cycle period where they have to 

change the fuel and all that. There are also ongoing 

programs on that reactor which we have to sandwich in between. 

All this has to be done out-of-house, you might 
say; and it takes a lot longer with a complicated piece of 

equipment like a nuclear reactor. 

• Could it have been done sooner at the Gulf Atomic 

at San Diego? 

MR. RYAN: I object. 

I think that calls for speculations on the part of 

the witness. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

a 	Why did you choose Oak Ridge over Gulf Atomic? 
• Because Oak Ridge was a very prominent site, had 

great capabilities along these lines. 

a 	Didn't the AEC recommend you use Gulf? 

• I don't recall that AEC recommended we use theirs. 
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• When did you do the neutron activation analysis on 

the paraffin casts? 

• I did that prior to the lead. 

4 	You did it prior to the lead? 

• But I don't remember when. 

0- 	Do you recall you had a series of conferences in 

December with officials from the AEC? 

• I had conferences with officials of the AEC to get 

into their reactor. 

• You got into the reactor for the paraffin cast 

long before the fragment and bullet analysis? 

1 	Yes. 

That's understandable. 

4 Why? 

A. 	We had bullet analysis by spectrographic analysis 

and didn't have the paraffin casts analyzed by any technique. 

• When you performed these neutron activation 

analyses at Oak Ridge, was Mr. Vincent Guinn present? 

A 	Dr. Vincent Guinn at the time was a director of 

general dynamic -- general atomics, was making lazy susan 

type reactors; and Vincent Guinn was a mar►  who was deep into 

neutron activation analysis. 

I know him very well. 
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a 	He has initially indicated he was going
 to be a 

consultant on the tests you carried out dow
n in Oak Ridge? 

A. 	No. 

He didn't say he would be a consultant. I 
don't 

think he ever said that. 

I don't recall him, to me, offering his ser
vices 

as a consultant. 

Was he a consultant? 

• He was a consultant on many cases; not as f
ar as 

we were concerned. 

• He did not provide you any advice or inform
ation 

or suggestions with respect to the tests th
at you carried out 

in this case? 

A 	As I told you before, I was workin
g with extremely 

competent men at Oak Ridge, Tennessee. 

We had a reactor facility that was equal to
 -- no 

other equal to it as far as I was concerned
; and, as far as 

the competency of the men concerned, I don'
t think you can 

doubt their competency. 

They were deep into neutron activation anal
ysis. 

If we had a problem, we had to consult with
 somebody, 

we would have done it. 

a 	Would one of the more experienced men
 in the field 
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of neutron activation analysis as a criminologist would have 

been Dr. Aebersold, would it not? 

A. 	I highly disagree with that. 

I don't think Dr. Aebersold -- I think he committe 

suicide. 

• As of what date? 

Do you know? 

A 	I don't know. 

a 	Wasn't he the head of the research arm, AEC, 

carrying out experiments in those fields? 

• Dr. Aebersold was an administrative man. I think 

everybody in the business relaizes that. 

Ct. 	Why did you want to keep him out of these procedure ? 

could care less whether Dr. Abersold WNW in 

the procedures or not, but I would have weighted his judgment. 

I don't think he had the expertise in neutron activation 

analysis, and I am sure he had never conducted any. 

• You had no reason for trying to conceal from him 

the tests to be carried out? 

A 	I could care less. 

I could care less who knows about the tests carried 

out. At that time it was important they didn't get out all 

over the papers until we got some data in. 
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MR. RYAN: What is the relevance of this line of 

questioning? 

MR. LESAR: What I am driving at is to understand 

the manner in which these tests were carried out and what sor 

of records were generated with respect to them. 

MR. RYAN: I don't understand the relevance of 

what Dr. Aebersold's involvement is. 

MR. LESAR: Mr. Aebersold specifically recommended 

certain tests. 

I would like to know why they weren't carried out 
in view of his recommendations. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

I have a letter which Mr. Aebersold directed to 

Mr. Herbert J. Miller, December 11, 1963. It contains 

certain recommendations. 

As you will recall, earlier this afternoon, I 

directed a number of questions as to why no tests were made 

on the bullet found in the rifle. 

Why was this advice from this letter rejected? 

I don't know the reason this advice was rejected. 

I gave you one reason I just read from a few pages 

of the report. 

The fellow read on there who made the cartridges 

ER REPORTING CO, INC 
,%,aLtitiseIts Avt,,ut. N "%trim Tic  2001.1/ 



69 

and who was the manufacturer. That wo
uld be the reason for 

the tests. 

Aebersold is speculating there. 

MR. RYAN: I think the main reason for
 us to be 

here is to find out whether tests wer
e conducted. I think 

we could really shorten the questioni
ng. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

St 	I would like you just to do yo
ur best to recall all 

the items of evidence that you took d
own to Oak Ridge 

National Laboratory and subjected to 
neutron activation 

analysis. 

It 	I cannot recall specifically wh
at the items and 

specimen: numbers were. You understan
d the confusion -- we 

had FBI numbers, Commission numbers; 
and I don't recall all 

these numbers and I don't recall the 
specimens. 

I took down paraffin lifts from Oswal
d and bullet 

particle• for examination. 

Specific items you could list from no
w until 

Sunday and I don't recall the specifi
c items. 

Let me give you a couple of examples. 

The curbstone that you examined earlie
r this after 

noon, did you take that to Oak Ridge 
and subject that to 

analysis? 
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• I did not. 

Is there any reason why that would not be done? 

MR. RYAN: I object. 

I don't think why is a relevant issue in your 

Freedom of Information lawsuit. 

Does the witness know why it was not done? 

THE WITNESS: It was run by a spectrographic 

examination, which results could not be improved on, 

undoubtedly is the reason. 

BY M.R. LESAR: 

• Did you take the President's clothing down? 

• For the holes? 

Q Yes. 

• I thought I was very explicit about analyzing 

holes. 

• Did you take the scraping from the window of the 

presidential limouSine down and subject that to those tests? 

A. 	I can't recall. 

• You don't recall the test you ran on that? 

A. 	I don't recall. 

4 	Could you hand me the folder back? 

You now have in front of you a sheet which has 

specimen No. Q-15 on it, do you not? 
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• Yes. 

4 	That indicates that you did take it down for testin 

does it not? 

• It indicates that I had it down for testing, yes. 

• That you had it in the reactor? 

• Yes. 

• Why are there no results? 

• I didn't obtain any. 

a 	Did you make any report on the significance of 

that? 

• Except that the sample wasn't adequate. 

• Is there any report on the fact that the sample was 

not adequate? 

• I don't know whether there was a report on it. 

Do you have the letter to Rankin? 

• Who was present at the time that pu put that in 

the reactor? 

• I tell you, Dr. Frank Dyer and possibly William
 

Lyon; and there was one other gentleman there -
- I am giving 

you the possibility of those who could have been there. 

I can't think of the other chap's name to save my 

life. I will think of it before I leave, probably. 

Previously you asked if I had run repeated samples 
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and I think this chart will reflect that I have. 

MR. LESAR: We will mark it as an exhibit. 

Could you mark that as the next Gallagher exhibit, 

just that page? 

(The document referred to was 

marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 4 

for identification.) 

BY MR. LESAR: 

• Now, without a report on Q-15, how would anyone 

know that you obtained no results from it? 

• By looking on these notes here. 

• Where on those notes does it say you obtained 

nothing on Q-15? 

• The page is blank. If any thing had come out, it 

would have been on here. 

Q. 	How would the Warren Commission know that? 

• They could have asked me. 

Q. 	They could have asked you. 

A. 	If it was pertinent, I am sure they would have. 

4 	You don't feel it is pertinent? 

• If they did, they would have. 

✓ Did the Warren Commission ask you to make the test? 

• No, I don't think so. 
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• Who asked you to make a test? 

A. 	It was our judgment we might get 
something out of 

them. 

4 	What sort of compariso
ns did you make as a result 

of your spectrographic and neutron a
ctivation analysis? 

A. 	Compared them to see if they 
were compatible. 

4 	You compared each s
ample of each item of evidence? 

L Each specimen, analysis of the different specimens 

to see if anything -- any judgment that cou
ld be furthered. 

4 	Let me get it clear.
 

There were two fragments removed fro
m the President' 

head and two fragments in the fron
t seat of the car, one 

121 from Governor Connally's wrist, the 
bullet which is Commiggio 

Exhibit 399. 

There were the items of the Presiden
t's clothing. 

There was a curbstone and the windshield scra
ping. 

Did you take each specimen and compa
re it with 

each of the others? 

A. 	Yes, I believe I did. 

4 	And did you make a tab
le of that? 

L I don't recall whether I did or not.
 

4 	Did you make a report on th
e comparisons and what 

the comparisons showed? 
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NO. 

There was a report that went out previously on 

the spectrographic examination
s. 

• When was that? 

• I don't know. 

Subsequent to the receipt of the specimens. 

• When was that? 

• I don't know. 

✓ The specimens were received on November 22 or 23, 

I believe. 

• Within two weeks a report went out, I would say. 

✓ There was no further report after that? 

• Then there was a report on the
 neutron activation 

analysis, a letter to Rankin. 

✓ We have no work sheets, no rep
orts, no evidence 

whatsoever that the copper fra
gment found on the front seat 

was subjected to neutron activ
ation analysis. 

Was it? 

A. 	I don't recall. 

a 	Should it have been? 

A. 	I don't recall. 

I think copper has the same problem of hiding 

it 
elements as does sodium. 

‘'S 
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Probably was run on a spectrograph. 

• You didn't run tests on other things, other matters, 

having copper? 

• I don't know. 

I don't know at this stage. 

• Did you compare the copper found on the President's 

clothing, the back of the coat and back of th
e shirt, with 

the copper from bullet 399? 

• How do you compare copper? 

Copper is an element. 

• Did you make a comparison of the quantitative 

amounts present? 

• Quantitative amounts present -- just that's a
 

greater amoung found on the cloth or greater than the 

amount in the cloth itself that determines whether the area 

is contaminated with copper. 

• Wouldn't you find out how many parts per million 

was copper or silver or something else? 

A. 	I probably would if I thought somebody would be 

interested in that. 

Q. 
	You didn't think that should have been determined 

so you could compare the percentage of those elements present 

in the sample removed from the President's coat with the 
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bullet alleged to have made the bullet hole? 

• I don't know. 

To me, it sounds like you are garbling on this. 

Copper is an element. If you find copper on the 

back of the coat and it is in excess of w.:lat is in the cloth, 

you say that area is smeared with copper. 

You want me to compare this copper and measure 

how much copper there is so that you can say that the 

bullet is 60 percent copper or the jacket is 60 percent 

copper? 

0 	Yes. 

• The 60 percent copper smeared on the coat? 

The samples are not capable for that type of an 

examination. 

4 	All right. 

were there any other elements -- 

L I did not make those examinations. 

• Which examinations? 

• On the cloth. 

• You did not make those examinations? 

• No. 

4 	Who made them? 

• I don't know. 
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I was probably at Oak Ridge with the parrafin 

casts at the time. 

I don't know. 

Did you compare the copper present in the jacket 

of bullet CE-399 with the copper present in the Q-3 jacket? 

• I did not compare the copper present in 399 with 

the copper present in Q-3, 

Why not? 

• I didn't think -- 

The copper present in Q-3 -- what is that? 

• One of the two front seat fragments. 

• I don't see Q-3. 

I don't find it there. 

What is that? 

• Is it a copper fragment found on the front seat, 

one copper and one copper and lead. 

• That was probably examined by spectrographic and 

not enough for me to examine. 

• This was a large fragment. 

• I don't know. 

We will see if it is in here. 

• You can't find it in there? 

• I can't find it here. I can't find it in here. 
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I don't know how large it was or how small it was. 

• It was 35 grains. 

• I have no recollection of it. 

• Of whether or not it was tested? 

• I have no recollection of it. 

• You would expect that you would have tested it? 

A 	I am not here to expect anything. I am telling 

you I have no recollection of it. 

• Is there any reason why you would not have tested 

it? 

• I don't know. 

I have no recollection of it. 

• Who determined what you would test? 

• I think it's a sound judgment of experienced 

examiners. 

4 	Which examiners? 

A. 	Examiners who have expertise in the matter. 

• How many examiners participated in the spectro-

graphic examinations? 

• I don't know. 

As I say, I think I must have been down at Oak 

Ridge when a lot of these spectrographic examinations were 

run. 
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Did you compare the lead fragments -- 

You are going to ask me about specifically lead 

fragments, and I told you repeatedly that I am not familiar 

with these individual specimens. 

If you want to talk in general terms, all right; 

but specific, individual specimens I don't recall. 

O. 	Let me ask it, then, in terms of what should have 

been done or what you normally would have done under the 

circumstances. 

There were fragments recovered from Governor 

Connally's wrist. 

Would you normally have compared those fragments 

with the chemical composition of the bullet which is alleged 

to have gone through both President Kennedy and Governor 

Connally? 

There isn't anything I do normally. We make 

judgments on each individual case, and we view each 

one of these and make judgments on their own. 

Isn't the relevant factor that you had a bullet 

which is in what has been described as virtually pristine 

shape with very little, if anything, missing from it; you 

have fragments removed from Governor Connally's wrist; would 

you not want to know whether or not those fragments were 
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identical with that bullet or could be? 

• Of course we would like to know. 

We would like to know anything that could contribute 

to the investigation. 

I am not going to answer anything on specific 

items which I am not familiar with and do not recall right 

now. 

4 	It would have added to your knowledged if there 

had been such a comparison, would it not? 

• I will not make any judgments on individual 

specimens. 

• Was there any reason why you would not perform 

every test possible in the case of the assassination of the 

President of the United States? 

• I think we took every damn avenue we could walk 

down in this case. 

When the paraffin casts came in, we didn't think we 

had any chance of getting a result. We determined antimony 

and barium. 

We knew there was very little chance. We covered 

every avenue that we thought was scientifically sane. 

You did that before you determined whether or not 

the fragments from governor Connally's wrist came from the 
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bullet which allegedly caused his wrist wound? 

• I explained to you the reason for that. 

Do you recall whether or not the fragments from 

Governor Connally's wrist were comapred with -- 

• I cannot talk to you about individual specimens 

which I do not recall. 

I believe that the FBI was not pinching pennies on 

the investigation of President Kennedy's assassination. 

• They weren't pinching any pennies, energy or 

enthusiasm to get to the bottom of it. 

You would expect all of the tests possible would 

have been done? 

A. 	Every test we thought was possible was done -- not 

possible, but practical. 

Then why wouldn't you compare 

• Don't ask me about specific specimens. 

• Q-3 is not present in any work sheets we have. 

Wouldn't you want to determine -- 

• I will not comment on any specific specimen. 

• Wouldn't you want to determine whether or not that 

was associated with the allegedly fatal bullet which struck 

President Kennedy? 

• Every examination we did was to contribute something 
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to the solution of this particular crime. 

• You had specimens of copper in the front seat -- 

MR. RYAN: The witness has already stated he will 

not be able -- 

MR. LESAR: Let me rephrase. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Q. 	Were you present when Special Agent Robert Frazier 

testified before the Warren Commission? 

A. 	No, I wasn't. 

Mr. Frazier testified that you made the examination 

comparing the bullet fragment found on the front seat with 

Commission Exhibit 399, and Mr. Specter asks was that examina-

tion made in the regular course of examining procedures in 

the FBI. 

The answer was yes, sir. 

Mr. Frazier and Mr. Spector refer to normal 

conference procedures among FBI examiners. 

What are they referring to when they refer to the 

normal conference procedures? 

A. 	I can't speak for anybody but myself. 

Normally when I do an examination, Frazier has 

responsibility for this evidence. I get this evidence from 

Frazier; I have to return it to Frazier because he will be 
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held responsible for these different specimens. 

When I bring that specimen back, I am going to 

either -- he might have a girl there dictating to her and 
I 

might dictate a paragraph. 

Conference is too formal a term. 

I might dictate my part, or I might give him a 

little note. 

I give him my work sheet and I give him the 

specimens and then I go back and make a note that I gave t
hem 

to him on that certain date. 

After 30 days these cards are thrown away. 

What cards? 

ri 	The little case cards. 

For receipt of the evidence? 

A. 	Just so that in case some question comes up, there
 

is a specimen missing, just little ticklers I keep for 

FI 
myself. 

After 30 days I throw them away. 

• Did you do that in the case of the Warren Commission? 

• I am sure I did. 

My own personal ticklers, because I do that after 

I check the report and make sure the dates are right, and 
so 

forth. 
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Mr. Frazier goes on here, and he says, referring 

to you, "Submitted his report to me and I prepared the formal 

report of the entire examination." 

Now, what report of yours is Mr. Frazier referring 

to? 

A. 	My work sheet. 

a 	He is talking about your work sheet, not a report. 

That's a misnomer. 

When he says he prepared the formal report of the 

entire examination, what is he referring to? 

A. 	As I told you, Frazier, in the normal course of 

business, Frazier is responsible for the evidence when it 

comes in and responsible for that evidence until it goes 

out. 

Now, when he gives me this evidence to analyze, I 

have a responsibility to get that back to him, and I might 

be one of three other examiners. 

He might, for example, have a piece of hair and he 

gives it to a hair examiner. He might have some sWil and 

gives it to a soil man. 

When the things come back in, he is responsible to 

get the report out. 

MR. LESAR: I want to show you a copy of another 

ER RENNTING GO 

■ 



n. 

.11ER REPORTING GO. !Nr. 

4i.441iditmeaskpm.,4! 

.nefv. 
• : 

4 

ing 

rt. 

he 

I 

t 

he 

to 

r 

document which I would like the reporter to put in as 

next exhibit. 

(The document referred 

marked Gallagher Exhib 

for identification.) 

BY MR. LESAR: 

Q. 	I want to show you a report dated November 2 

to Mr. Jesse E. Curry, Chief of Dallas Police. 

• That is Gallagher Exhibit 5. 

• All right. 

Are you familiar with that report; do you r 

having seen that report before? 

• Yes. 

Do you recall who made that report? 

• Frazier made it. 

Q. 	Is that the only report by Mr. crazier that 

saw? 

• I think it was after this that I left for Oa.  

Ridge, right after this, to the best of my recollectio.  

The date of this is November 23. 

• The assassination was on the 22nd. 

4 	Yes. 

• Yes. 
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4 	Now, in view of the fact that this report is dated 

a day after the President's assassination, could this be 

what Mr. Frazier is referring  to here when he says he prepared 

the formal report of the entire examination? 

• That's it. 

a 	This is the entire examination? 

• To that date, yes. 

4 	Was there another examination later that he 

prepared a report on? 

• I imagine there was. 

It probably went to the chief. 

The best one to ask that is Frazier. 

I was going  to get to this question of, do you 

recall that the laboratory reports were generally sent to 

the Dallas Field Office? 

H 	A 	Frazier would be the one to ask that, because, as 

I say, he was the one responsible for getting  out the reports 

and contributing  editors were the people who did the 

auxiliary examinations. 

• In general, with respect to FBI reports, where are 

copies filed; to whom are they submitted and where filed? 

• Normally the reports are returned to the contributor. 

If the Dallas office sent in some specimens, I 
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imagine they would get a report back. 

In this particular case, this is a report on the 

assassination of President Kennedy. It goes to the Chief of 

Police, Dallas, Texas. 

The reason, he was responsible for the investiga-

tion at that time. 

Q. 	Would the Dallas rield Office also get a copy? 

• I really don't know on that. 

How about -- would copies of laboratory reports 

ordinarily go to the communications division? 

• Administratively, I don't know how this particular 

thing was set up; I really don't know. 

A copy of the report goes someplace so it can be 

recovered if someone wants it for testimony. 

When do you recall -- 

What's your first recollection of someone asking 

for copies of the reports of the spectrographic analysis? 

Do you have any recollection when the first came 

to your attention? 

• After the Freedom of Information Act was passed. 

I don't know. 

I think that precipitated a lot of requests. 

• How about with respect to neutron activation analysis? 
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don't know. 

Who made you aware that a request was being made? 

• Of what? 

• For copies of the spectrographic and NAA tests? 

• I think you did. 

• I did? 

• Somebody -- I don't know who it was -- somebody 

wanted all the copies of the neutron activation analysis 

tests. 

• How did he contact you? 

• I really don't remember. 

I thought it was you. 

Did he contact you telephonically or by mail, or 

how? 

• I don't even remember when it happened. 

I thought it was you and you contacted me 

telephonically. 

MR. LESAR: For the record, no, I did not. 

BY MR. LESAR: 

• Who first -- 

Do you recall any official from any government 

agency contacting you about Mr. Weisberg's requests for 

spectrographic analysis? 
1 

1ER ItEnKrING ea, tic 
N 

t's ; 

b.5e.f.t. 



89 

Any official, FBI, Department of Justice -- 

• I don't recall that. 

• Anyone from the Atomic Energy Commission or its 

successor? 

I think somebody from the Atomic Energy Commission --

I had a casual acquaintance there -- said there was an 

inquiry. 

Do you recall what you informed him? 

• What I informed him? 

With respect to what tests had been made. 

• No, I don't recall what I told him. 

I know if it was early in the game, if somebody 

was inquisitive, I told them there was no comment, at the 

time the data was being taken. 

I am talking about, say, the fall of 1974. 

A. 	I have no way of knowing. 

This doesn't strike me of being of paramount 

' significance, and I don't remember. 

• I am curious why you told the Atomic Energy Commission, 

one of their representatives, that the only neutron activation 

analyses that had been conducted were on the paraffin casts. 

• I certainly would have no way of knowing who I 

talked to in that regard, and I certainly would have to reason 
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to hide anything. 

The question was probably asked, what reports went 

to committee, or something like that. I probably said the 

paraffin casts. 

I don't recall talking to anybody and deliberately 

withholding the fact that lead was analyzed. 

Are you aware of -- 

Do you have any knowledge of any documents, memoran-

dum, notes, reports, films or photographs which have been 

removed from the FBI headquarters with respect to President 

Kennedy's assassination? 

• I think everything was brought over to the Archives. 

Is that what you mean? 

Do you have knowledge of any agents taking any 

things home? 

• I am certain nobody would do that. 

• Do you ever hear of any agents taking a copy of the 

Zapruder film out and taking it home? 

• No. 

Absolutely no. 

I never saw it except on TV myself. 

The question was labored for quite a while on 

specimen 0-3 and why I didn't analyze it. 
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I think the answer is very clear here. 0-3 data 

is represented in this chart, and the reason Q-3 is not 

analyzed, the background count was 462 counts. The net 

count from the specimen was 463. 

One additional count is a fact not worth remember-

ing, but it's in here. 

4 	Is it a fact worth making a report on? 

A. 	As I say, I don't know whether or not a report was 

made on this or not. 

Q. 	Should there not be a laboratory work sheet for 

that specimen? 

A. 	It is here. 

4 	Is that spectrographic or NAA? 

A. 	This is NAA. 

4 	All the other specimens you have indicated the tim 

you put it in the activator and how long it was in there 

and numbers representing the results. 

A. 	Yes. 

This doesn't because there is no data. It is just 

background. 

Are you avidre that we have been told by the FBI 

under oath that this was not tested? 

A. 	What? 
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Q-3. 

A. 	I just was of the opinion of that myself; you almost 

talked me into this myself. 

It was probably an honest mistake just like I made 

previous to this. 

Why didn't you do with respect to 0-3 what you did 

to Q-15, a sheet on which is reflected the time it was put 

on the reactor? 

• This is probably an oversight on my part, evidently.' 

it could be an oversight on my part, or it might 

be on another sheet of paper that I didn't put it down in 

this form. 

There would have been print-out On it, wouldn't 

there? 

• Probably. 

On each of these specimens, would there not? 

• Probably yes, unless they were judged to be worth-

less and not kept. 

The data is here, and it just indicates there is 

no data available for any judgments. 

(1. 	Why not? 

Is that a customary practice? 

• I told you, with the coin -- if I give you a little 
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corner of the coin and I ask you whether it is a quarter or 

a dime, what are you going to tell me? 

It would seem to me that if you subject a specimen 

to neutron activation analysis and there are no results 

that you would write out "no results obtainable," would you 

not? 

• When you do your neutron activation analysis, you 

write down "no results obtainable." 

I know what I am talking about and what I am 

doing. 

• How would anybody else know? 

Suppose this case came to trial -- 

A. 	Nobody else could testify from my notes; certainly 

you wouldn't want somebody taking my notes and testifying 

against you who didn't do the work. 

How about the Warren Commission? 

• I think if anybody is going to testify against a 

tobacco-chewing American, he should be faced by the man who 

did the work. 

Q Why didn't you testify to the Warren Commission 

about the spectrographic and neutron activation analysis? 

• Because I wasn't asked. 

• Somebody was asked, weren't they? 
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A. 	I was not asked. 

That's the only thing I can testify to. 

p. 	Mr. Frazier said that, as I recall, to save time. 

• I have no way of knowing why I wasn't asked. 

I certainly didn't make any inquiries. 

• You were aware that Mr. Frazier testified about the 

spectrographic analysis? 

• I saw it in print. 

4 	Were you aware at the time he testified that he 

was going to testify about it? 

• No, I wasn't aware -- I wasn't even aware he was 

going to testify. 

He didn't come in and say, "I am going in to testify 

today." 

• He didn't tell you he would be testifying about 

spectrographic analysis? 

• I don't think he knew himself. 

4 	How did he know what to testify to if he didn't 

consult with you? 

• Strictly what was in the laboratory results. 

• You did testify before the Warren Commission at the 

very tail end of the proceeding if I recall. 

• I gave a deposition; yes, I did. 
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• Did you testify at all about spectrographic analysis? 

• No, I did not. 

a 	Why not. 

was asked to testify on the paraffin lifts, and 

I answered the questions. 

p. 	Who asked you? 

Someone from the Warren Commission and not from the 

FBI? 

• I gave a deposition associated with the Warren 

Commission, but I certainly can't remember his name. 

You were asked to testify about neutron activation 

analysis, were you not? 

• That's what I was asked about, yes. 

You didn't testify about neutron activation analysis 

about the fragments? 

• I didn't think there was anything that contributed 

any more to the bullet examination than the spectrographic 

showed. 

Q. 	I have here a table of some results. 

I would like you to look at it and tell me what it 

is. 

I think there is another page of it here. This 

I goes with it. 
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• The standard deviation formula is on this paper 

here, if you have looked at it. 

Let the record reflect it.  is on this -- 

What were you going to call it? 

MR. LESAR: Let's mark it as another exhibit. 

(The document referred to was 

marked Gallagher Exhibit No. 6 

for identification.) 

BY MR. LESAR: 

• Now, how would you describe what you are looking 

at now? 

• Where is the first page? 

5 	Here are the additional pages. 

I want to hold back the covering letter for a 

second and give you the rest of it. I want to refer back to 

that in a minute. 

How would you characterize what you have there? 

think it's just an orderly presentation of the 

data in that blue folder. 

I think if you would have given me this first it 

would have been easier. 

5 	This is neutron activation analysis? 

• On leads. 
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Q. 	On leads only; is that correct, on leads only? 

• On the lead material constituting the various 

specimens here. 

Q. 	Does it include anything with copper? 

• No, it does not include anything with copper. 

Q. 	Did you make a similar tabulation for items of 

evidence which were copper? 

A 	No, I did not. 

• Any reason why not? 

• Because I didn't think I could clean them up 

sufficiently. 

The covering letter to which these are attached 

is a letter dated July, I believe, 6, 1964, from Mr. Jevons 

to Mr. Conrad; and it indicates that, "As previously reported . 

to the Commission, certain small lead metal fragments 

uncovered in connection with this matter were analyzed 

spectrographically to determine whether they could be 

associated with one or more of the larger bullet fragments 

and no significant differences were found within the 

sensitivity of the spectrographic method. 

"Because of the higher sensitivity of neutron 

activation analysis certain of the small lead fragments were 

subjected to neutron activation analyses and comparisions 
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with the larger bullet fragments. While minor variations in 

composition were found by this method, these were not 

considered sufficient to permit positively differentiating 

among the larger bullet fragments and thul3 

determining from which of the larger bullet fragments any 

small lead fragment may have come." 

This speaks of variations in the composition. 

What variations did you notice? 

think this chart illustrates the variations. 

• What elements have the largest variations? 

A. 	The element that specifically -- we were hoping 

we would get some exotic elements. 

• By "exotic" -- 

A. 	Rare earth, promethium, some rare earths which have 

a very high cross section for thereto-neutron capture and are 

very sensitive by this test. 

Same way with gold. 

We were hoping that some one of these exotic 

elements would show up that we could put a handle on this 

thing. 

We didn't see any of these exotic elements, so we 

just zeroed in on lead and silver. 

Copper was a coating material, and copper was too 
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hard -- we couiln't be sure we had cleaned out all the copper. 

We didn't want to go on to copper even if we got 

data because we weren't sure the sample we had was of 

heterogeneous contents. 

This is the antimony determinations here. 

We did several different pins on these samples. 

4 	Do you notice any or the variations between samples 

which are higher than you would normally expect from samples 

that come from the same specimen? 

A. 	I expect what I get. 

I don't anticipate what my data is going to be. 

4 	Let me phrase it this way, do you evaluate any of 

those results obtained as ruling out the possibility that 

one sample is of the same source as another? 

• I can't change one single thought that's in that 

report to Rankin which I labored over. 

4 	You labored over the report? 

• The letter. 

4 	This is your letter? 

• To Rankin. 

• This is not to Rankin but from Mr. Jevons to 

Mr. Conrad. 

• It's essentially the same. 
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• You did the draft of it? 

• The notions are essentially mine. 

Q. 	Mr. Jevons had something written from you that he 

picked up and put in this? 

• I don't know. 

He called me in and said, "There is a stenographer 

here. What are you going to tell her?" 

And I would dictate after considerable reflection. 

(1 	You say you labored over it and reflected over it. 

• I wanted it to be understood and as clear as I could 

make it so there would be no hemming and hawing about it 10 

years later. 

Q. 	Did you write something out? 

• I don't recall. 

I probably had this in my hands, stuff written out 

and scribbled over. 

I don't know.- 

Or I probably dictated to her and asked her to read 

it back and scrap it, this way. 

I know it wasn't the first draft that satisfied 

me. 

Would it take a period of days, perhaps? 

• It took many and many a day to get the data. 
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I was living with it for so long that I wanted it to 

be understood. 

Q. 	You say in it -- I note it is very carefully worded - 

you say, "While minor variations in composition were found 

by this method, these were not considered sufficient to 

permit positively differentiating among the larger bullet 

fragments and thus positively determining from which of the 

larger bullet fragments any given small lead fragment may 

have come." 

What my question is, how much of a differentiation 

would you have had to have in order to come to a conclusion 

that eliminated any two specimens as being from the same 

source? 

As I say, if I found one particular specimen to 

consistently come up with some exotic element which was not 

revealed in any of the other specimens, I think the answer 

would be obvious; I could throw that specimen out. 

However, I would like to have a two or three time 

variation; I would like it to be several times greater than 

the standard deviation. 

What is the standard deviation with respect to 

antimony? 

A. 	This is the statistical approach to the stuff. 
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I brushed up on it for the report here, but I am 

:y as the devil on it now. 

What was your question? 

9 	My question is, what is the standard deviation with 

pect to the antimony? 

17.48, in 29.63, on 0-2, Q-4 and Q-5, 13.52, Q-9, 

14, 0-1, illegible. 

Q-1 is illegible on the Xeroxing. 

Q-14 is 20.87. 

Given those standard deviations and those results, 

there any which indicate that they come from a different 

urce or could come from a different source? 

I think this chart illustrates what I am talking 

out very much. 

Here are the different antimony -- not antimony -- 

le value of antimony is not represented by a number, plus 

r minus, or ability to measure. 

This is what we have got here. The elements are 

laced in there. If you drew a line through there, you couldn't 

.ay any of them were much below the line which is what I would 

rave had to have to eliminate one. 

a 	Would you pick the smallest and largest numbers 

in terms of antimony? 
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• Smallest and largest numbers with respect to 

antimony. 

749 parts per million. 

5 	For which specimen? 

• Exucse me, 697 parts per million. 

5 	For which specimen? 

• For Q-1, 697 parts per million. 

Then the other one was 534. 

a 	Now, given the standard deviations -- 

534 wag for which specimen? 

• Q-2. 

5 	Given the standard deviations for tho
se, can you 

eliminate those two as having come from the same source? 

• No. 

I think I have put it down in that report as clearly 

as I can. 

I cannot do it from this data. 

5 	I don't think your report addresses t
he problem of 

any other source. Your report -- 

Take the standard deviation, again, for Q-1; what 

did you say that was? 

• Standard deviation is 17.48. 

For the other? 
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• What other? 

The 534. 

• 29.63. 

Now, that's not parts per million. Those are 

counts. 

• Given those figures, can you tell me at what point 

you would be willing to say that the parts per million figures 

would eliminate the possibility that they could have come from 

the same source? 

• Well,*if I had, for example, antimony determination 

here that was -- 

For example, if it were 10 times bigger or 10 times 

smaller, certainly I would throw that out. 

You are saying that if you have antimony of 5000 

on 0-1, you would then throw out the other specimen we have 

been dealing with? 

• With not too big a bounce on it, I would throw 

it out. 

• I don't understand. 

• I have repeated samples run here, from the same 

specimen. 

If the samples look real homogenous and then there 

is a difference of 500 to 5000 parts per million of antimony, 
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I would look for two different sources. 

Q. 	But it would have to be how many times greater? 

• I am giving you an example. 

I have to evaluate each one of these on their 

merit, knowing what the samples look like, how homogenous 

they are, and everything else. 

5 	Essentially you are saying it is very subjective. 

• It is very objective to anybody who is in the busine 

It's just that I am not eloquent enough to get 

it across. 

This is a competent elements study here done 

statistically. I brushed up on this specifically for this. 

I think it's pretty revealing to anybody that's 

d into statistics and wants to delve into that. 

• The result of it was that you concluded that you 

cannot establish that any two of the samples tested are from 

different sources? 

• I think that not only I, but anybody that took this 

data and looked at it would come to the same judgment. 

• I think you testified earlier that the spectrographic 

analysis made on the curbstone showed all that was possible -- 

A. 	If I testified that, I want to correct it right 

now. 
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I did not make the examination on the curbsbme. 

I don't want to comment on any of the results which 

I know nothing about. 

What was your explanation -- do you recall your 

explanation for not selecting the curbstone for neutron 

activation analysis? 

• It was reported to me that a spectrographic examina-

tion had been done. 

0. 	Who made the report? 

• It was either Heilman, Heidenberger or Edwards, 

special agent examiners in the unit. 

• Did you see the report? 

• You showed it to me here today. 

n. 	I showed you -- 

A 	And you asked me to make a handwriting anlaysis 

on it. 

I did ask whether or not it was your writing. 

Is that all the spectrographic analysis of the 

!i curbstone? 

A. 	That's it, apparently. 

• There were no quantitative figures for it? 

• How can you get quantitative figures from something 

like that? 
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He is lucky to find whatever he found there. 

The question wag asked, is it a bullet mark? 

He said it could be because he found lead and 

antimony. 

Q. 	Did you ever see a microscopic examination of the 

curbstone made by anyone? 

Do you recall that? 

• I recall seeing the curbstone. 

Q 	I am asking about the report on the microscopic 

examination of it. 

• It just goes without saying that a microscopic 

1 ,  examination -- this has been the procedure for 30 years in 

the FBI. 

We don't say, "Dear contributor, we subjected your 

evidence to a microscopic examination; we fondled the outside 

of the bullet and measured the outside of it." 

The reason I was asking is because we don't have 

it. 

• You wouldn't have it on 99 and 44/100 percent of 

the examinations done in the spectrographic examinations. 

4 	I am talking about the microscopic examination. 

• The fellow would say, "I found a smear and analyzed 

i t." 

M.PqR, !vol 
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He wouldn't say, "I subjected this to a microscopic 

examination." 

Would you take microscopic pictures of it? 

• I think all the specimens in the Kennedy assassina-

tion case, pictures were taken. 

Q. 	You are talking about micrscopic pictures? 

A. 	NO. 

• Would you do it in this case? 

• No, because it would make very dull reading. It 

would contribute nothing to the understanding of what this 

man was facing, a gray smear on something, highly unintelli-

gible to anybody who didn't look through the microscope 

himself. 

How many elements -- you take the smear on the 

curbstone, and it's said to be three-quarters of an inch by 

an inch. 

How many elements would you expect to find by 

means of spectrographic analysis? 

• I would expect to find all that are there within 

1 the range of an emission spectrographic examination. 

Let me ask you one final question. I think that's 

probably it. 

What variation would you consider significant in 

',ZRn°00.P!wr: 
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testing primer residues? 

In primer residues, you have -- in the primer 

itself is barium nitrate and antimony sulfide. 

When the primer is discharged, the lead is stiffen-

ing; it should be. 

Actually, when a weapon is fired, the solid 

residues that are deposited on the shooter's hands contain 

antimony, barium and lead. 

You can't see lead by neutron activation analysis 

because it is one of the elements you don't activate in a 

reactor that has a decay constant long enough to measure. 

You go after antimony and barium. 

Our principle has been to compare the amount of 

antimony and barium on one hand -- our principle now -- with 

the antimony and barium on the other hand to see if there is 

an increase in the antimony and barium on the shooting hand 

over the nonshooting hand or whether there is an amount of 

antimony and barium which represents an amount that's 

excessive as far as to a tobacco-chewing American is concerned. 

Would you compare -- 

You also test for the residues in the rifle barrel? 

In the rifle shell. 

Here again, we analyze the primer resudues in the 

;tfER AFPORT1NG 111, INC 
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shell because we were hoping that, again, we would find an 

exotic, some element, rare earth, some element which would 

really highlight this particular primer residue as being 

characteristic in itself. 

Actually, the subject in this particular case, 

Oswald, had fired a revolver allegedly after he had fired a 

rifle. 

If we could distinguish between the primer residues 

of the revolver and the rifle, we would have been a couple 

of steps in advance. 

Let me ask you, how much variation between the 

amount of antimony or barium in the residue from the pistol you 

would have to have between that and the shell residue in order 

to establish that the sources were different? 

The variation in the antimony and barium would not 

give us that amount of intelligence -- the amount of variation 

in the antimony and barium that you find as residue on a hand 

and you take out of a shell, this is not entirely significant 

or not very significant because when that gun is discharged, 

that's an extremely violent act, and there is nothing in the 

world that tells us that the antimony and barium is going to 

be homogenously mixed on the shooter's hand. 

You have two different rifle shells. 

HREPOPTMG4X,M: 
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How much variation in antimony or barium do you have 

to have before you establish that there is a different 

source? 

MR. RYAN: I will have to object. 

I don't know that you have connected up that ques-

tion with the specific facts or test results in this case. 

MR. LESAR: The question relates whether we have bee 

given any reports on comparisons made between different shells 

testified to in this case. 

BY MR. LESAP: 

• Let me rephrase the question this way: 

How much variation would you have to find in any 

two rifle shells before you would find it noteworthy? 

• In the primer residue? 

• Yes. 

• I don't know. 

You see, the primer shells have got writing on the 

bottom of them, the cartridge cases. 

You can tell. 

If I gave you a three-cent stamp, you wouldn't ask 

me to analyze it, I think. 

• Suppose you are trying to determine whether or not 

the ammunition in that shell was reloaded or original 

IOVER REPORTING 41`., INC 
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ammunition? 

A. 	If it is reloaded ammunition? 

4 	Yes. 

• Reloaded -- 

4 	Western -- 

A. 	Shells? 

Yes. 

A. 	You would have to ask the fire arms examiner. Ile 

could tell that. 

I don't know. I am not an expert in that field. 

• Let's get back again to, what variation would you 

have to find in order to make the determination? 

A. 	I have' no judgment on that. 

4 	Suppose the variation was double? 

• I have no judgment on that on residue. 

• Did you make any determinations of that sort with 

respect to President Kennedy's assassination? 

• I don't recall. 

I made primer residue examination when I was doing 

the paraffin lifts to find out if there were any exotics. 

• How about for other purposes, such as the one I 

suggested, determining whether or not the ammunition had been 

reloaded? 

11 

i V 
11 
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The state of the art wouldn't allow you, when we 

were doing this examination, to make any conclusions from 

the residues of the primer. 

If you found a 30 percent variation in the primer - 

A. 	I don't answer hypothetical questions. 

MR. LESAR: I think you have. 

MR. WEISBERG: Why not for another purpose, when 

you have test results from examination of the shells, not 

the paraffin lifts, statistically significantly different 

1 in these same elements, why not consider something besides 

the paraffin tests when you are conducting this kind of an 

investigation? 

We have these reports of this variation in the 

primer. 

THE WITNESS: You say they are statistically 

significant. You want to put that in quotes. 

MR. WEISBERG: That's why I asked ynu the question. 

THE WITNESS: There is nothing in the state of the 

, art at the time we were doing this which would enable us to 

associate a particular source with another particular source 

MR. WEISBERG: That wasn't what I was saying, sir. 

There was a difference of about 30 percent between 

the reports you got from testing two different shells. 

4ER REPORTING CO, INC 
husclts Avoide N 	' 1  

qty, 0 I' ?tHIII, 
tittf31-, 



114 

THE WITNESS: For primer residues? 

MR. WEISBERG: I am saying that's not the same as 

comparing it with the lifts. 

All I am asking, isn't a 30 percent difference, 

test results from the shells themselves, something that 

should be commented upon in a report? 

THE WITNESS: Obvioudly I didn't think so or I 

would have done it. 

MR. WEISBERG: You may have done it without us 

getting it. 

MR. LESAR: Our purpose is to find out whether or 

not there are records the government has and we have not 

received. 

MR. WEISBERG: Or have not been found. 

MR. LESAR: The purpose has been simply to determine 

what records were created and what exists and where they 

might he so we have some way of assessing what we asked for; 

and it's very difficult -- a very difficult way in which to 

proceed. 

That's what we have been attempting to do. 

I think I am concluded with the deposition. 
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EXAMINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANTS 

BY MR. RYAN: 

Could you please describe the state of the art of 

neutron activation analysis in 1964 briefly? 

It was very young at that time. The equipment was 

relatively medieval. 

It was not the multichannel analyzers with the 

automatic print-outs you have today and the read-out equip-

ment where you generate your data was extremely complex and 

the record-keeping on the part of the people doing the 

examination was voluminous. 

Today that would all be printed out in computer- 

like form. 

Then on top of that, as far as the work insofar as 

criminalistics is concerned, there was a few men leading in 

the field, Dr. Vincent Guinn, San Diego, for example. There 

were a few more down at Oak Ridge. 

There were very few universities with low power 

reactors. 

It was really in its infancy. 

MR. LESAR: In 1963, 1964, compared with 

spectrographic analysis, what was the comparative sensitivity 

between the two? 

J ER REPORIINI; 4 !) 
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THE WITNESS: For specific elements, it had no 

peers, for gold, some of the rare earths, to determine 

arsenic in some cases, it had no peer in my estimation, 

antimony or barium in primer residues. 

MR. LESAR: Would it have been on the order of 10 

times more sensitive than spectorgraphic analysis? 

THE WITNESS: In some cases 1000 times more 

sensitive. 

MR. LESAR: Just to pin it down to the things we 

have been talking about and the instances with which your 

examinations are concerned, how much more sensitive would it 

have been for antimony, for silver, for barium? 

THE WITNESS: Probably two-fold more sensitive 

but more dependable quantitatively. 

BY MR. RYAN: 

Q, 	Could you describe the physical circumstances on 

copying down the data as the samples were going into the 

reactor? 

The time the samples went into the reactor, time out, 

time it was counted, the length of time, had to be recorded. 

All this had to be done by myself there while they were 

putting stuff in and taking it out. 

MR. LESAR: Does that mean there was no one who 
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verified what you wrote down; you wrote down everything 

yourself; you wrote down the result yourself? 

THE WITNESS: I did most of that, yes. 

MR. LESAR: From a print-out? 

THE WITNESS: In many cases, the chap running the 

pneumatic tubes would have a print-out, and he would put that 

on the print-out and I would transpose the time he started 

counting so I could make calculations that night; and so 

there was actually a cross check on it. 

We checked each other's work as best we could. 

MR. LESAR: Did he keep any separate notes? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

No notes at all that he was entitled to keep. 

That was one of the stipulations; we didn't want 

this thing to go all over Oak Ridge until we got data and 

the Commission knew about it. 

That's one of the reasons -- 

You were talking about Vince Guinn. 

He was a good friend of ours and very supportive in 

1: every way. He was selling atomic reactors. 

It would be a lot more easy for a man trying to 

sell reactors to say we were using his facility. 

I think that's understandable if you know the 
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[own everything 

elf? 

t, yes. 

chap running the 

0 he would pUt that  

und. 

MR. LESAR: What sort of clock did you use to clock 7- 

re a clock connected to the reactor? 

How do you determine the time it goes in and goes 

THE WITNESS: There is a big second clock and it's 

time he stated -'red automatically. 

night; and so 

best we could_ 

rate notes? 

:led to keep. 

we didn't want 

e got data and 

'ery supportive in 

man trying to 

i.tv. 

DU know the 

MR. LESAR: Okay. 

I think I am through if you are through. 

MR. RYAN: I have no further questions. 

(Whereupon, at 3:45 p.m., the taking of the 

sition was ended.) 
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CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC 

I, Sandra S. Morgan, the officer before whom the 

foregoing deposition was taken, do hereby certify that the 

witness whose testimony appears in the foregoing deposition 

was duly sworn by me; that the testimony of said witness 

was taken by me stenographically and thereafter reduced to 

typewriting by me; that said deposition is a true record of 

the testimony given by said witness; that I am neither 

counsel for, related to, nor employed by any of the parties 

to the action in which this deposition was taken; and, further, 

that I am not a relative or employee of any attorney or 

counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor financially or 

otherwise interested in the outcome of the action. 

Notary Public in and fot 
the District of Columbia 

My commission expires October 14, 1981. 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF P'Frrct. 

FEDERAL LUHLAU 	WKESTICATIO' 
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By Co4zitr Service 

Heuorable J. Lee Rankin 
General Counsel 

President's Commission 
h00 Maryland Avanue, Northeast 
Washington, D. C. 20002 

Dear Mr. Rankin: 

During the course of diecussioa c 
activation analyses between Mr. !'el': in 	 c; !on: 
Gaff and Special Agent John F. Clalcv.her 	1 ,'"eau 
can March 1G, 1904, Mr. Sibenberg requested 	-1;:Tinrs 
information: 

1. What are some items in common usagu w:Ach 
contain barium? Some items that may i.;:slude 
barium are,: grease, ceramics, class, paint, 
printing ink, paper, rubber, plastics, 
loather, cloth, pyrotechnics, oilcloth and 
linoleum, storage batteries, matches and 
cosmetics. 

2. What are some items in common usalle which 
contain antimony? Some items that 7_y 
include antimony are: matches, tyre metal, 
lead alloys, paints and lacquers, pt rents 
for oil and water colors, flameproo2 
textiles, otorage battories, pyrotechnics, 
rubber, pharmaceutical preparations tu..1 

calico. 

3. That are some items In coca on usage whi.11 
contain both barium and antimony? 13ari-u.:4 
and antimony may be foudd in the follag 
itcmm: printed paper and cloth, 
stcrage batteries, .:abbe_ and matc:I. 
pyrotochnics aad pm,ulbly other itcs.J. 

4'; tua,,,,I: L.1:;ei1r N., 1 
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J. Lee Rankin 

4. Vouldptron activation analyses show if  

n 	pnssed tuzeufii-The hole in the 

XronL of President L.:41nedy's shirt near

the collar button are:: and also if_w_ 
balot punned through the material of his 

tie? Neutron activation is a ,..;ensitive 

analytical technique to determine elements 

present in a substance. During the course 

of the spectrographic e%aminations previously 

conducted of the fabric surrounding the 

hole in the front of the shirt, including 

the tie, no copper was found in excess of 

that pfLsent elsewhere in undamaged areas 

of the shirt and tie. Therefore, no copper 

was found which could be attributed to 

projectile fragments. 

It in not felt that the increased sensitivity 

sp neutron activation analyses would contribute subs
tantially 

to the understanding of the origin of this ho
le and frayed 

area. 

Sincerely yours, 

21.-crers4A—' 
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